
            
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                               BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

April 4, 2024 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 
 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

2. APPOINT DISTRICT NEGOTIATOR 

Board to discuss and appoint a District Negotiator for the Closed Session item listed below. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

 

3.   CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  –   Property: McPhail Site (APNs 180-151-
18, 180-161-10, and 180-161-09) McPhail: Approximately 9.76 acres of land (APNs 180-151-18, 
180-161-10, & 180-161-09), located at 1565 Vendola Drive, San Rafael, in the County of Marin 
(unincorporated), that served as the location of the former McPhail Elementary School, which 
consists of vacant land and secured structures ("McPhail Site").  Agency negotiator: To Be 
Designated at An Open Session Before This Closed Session.  Negotiating parties: San Rafael City 
Elementary School District. Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and 
terms of payment. 

 
OPEN SESSION: 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

4:30 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:00 PM 
 

4:10 PM 
 

 

4:05 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


April 4, 2024 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for March 21,  2024 

B. Approve the Warrant List for April 4, 2024 

C. Approve Murray attending IRWA Webinar Carbon Capture, Utilization and Storage for Land 
Professionals March 27, 2024 

D. Approve Award of Contract for Reclamation Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance 
Services  

E. Approve Resolution 2024-2325 Updating Signers on the Bank of Marin Bank Accounts 

 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through D. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through E. 

 

5. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. Solar Photovoltaic System Upgrade Project Update from Tim Holmes 

             Kenwood Energy - verbal 

2. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

3. Board Policy F-90-70 Disbursements – written 

4. Topics for the 2024 Summer Newsletter - written 

 

6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee,  
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports  

 
2. MURRAY 

a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  
 Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  
 Other Reports 

 
 

3. ROBARDS 
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
                          FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

 
 

4. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          Marin Special Districts, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  
              Other Reports 

7. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

 

5:45 PM 

 
 
 
 

5:30 PM 

 

4:40 PM 

 

2



April 4, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

8. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

9. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: APRIL 17, APRIL 18 AND MAY 2, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before  April 1, 2024 4:00 pm I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held  on April 4, 2024, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: March 28, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

5:50 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:00  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

4/4/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



4/4/2024 

APPOINT DISTRICT NEGOTIATOR FOR CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

AGENDA ITEM  2 

5



 

 
 

 

4/4/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\ASR for Pasture Irrigation O&M 2024-25.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors  

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: April 4, 2024 

Re: Bid Award - Reclamation Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance 
Services 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________ 

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to award a contract to Custom Tractor Services Inc. (CTS) to provide Reclamation Pastureland 
Irrigation Operations and Maintenance with inclusionary language that obligates CTS to share 30% of the 
hay crop gross profit proceeds with the District. 

BACKGROUND 
Plant effluent that is discharged to the reclamation storage ponds when needed throughout the year must 
be land applied in the irrigation pastures as a means of disposal. This reduces the storage burden and is 
anticipated to provide the capacity to successfully meet the full term of the treatment plant creek discharge 
prohibition period, June through October. The District utilizes professional services to provide pasture 
preparation, operate and maintain the irrigation equipment, and perform limited levee road and ditch 
maintenance during the reclamation season. In previous years, the District’s need for annual biosolids 
removal and surface injection work was included as a second bid item but, beginning in the 2023-24 fiscal 
year, that need will be accomplished as a component of a larger effort to support the District’s beneficial 
biosolids project which will be competitively bid under a separate scope of work and contract. 

A single bid from Custom Tractor Services Inc. was received during the invitation for bids period. The Bid 
was officially opened and read at 10:31 am on March 15, 2024, with the following result recorded: 

Custom Tractor Services Inc. 

Item 1: Reclamation area pasture irrigation Operations and Maintenance.     $122,500 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
The Board awarded a contract to Custom Tractor Services Inc in the amount of $121,400 for Reclamation 
Pastureland Irrigation Operations and Maintenance Services with a 30% of gross profit share to the District 
from the sale of hay crops grown on District lands at the April 6, 2023 meeting.  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
The activities described above comply with the District’s NPDES permit. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
$122,500 

Item Number______4D________ 

GM Review   ___CP___________ 

19

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\ASR 2024-2325 Bank of Marin signing authority.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: April 4, 2024 

Re: Resolution authorizing signing authority for the Bank of Marin bank accounts and 
removing signers from the authorized signers list. 

 

Item Type:   Consent X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Resolution 2024-2325 to add new authorized member to the list of signers and 
remove those members that are no longer with the district. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Operating bank accounts held at the Bank of Marin 
requires a formal resolution by the governing body to authorize representatives on their behalf to 
establish new accounts, modify existing accounts, and to make deposits or withdrawals into the 
bank account. Board Member Gary Robards, newly appointed as Vice President, will be added to 
the authorized signers list. 
 
Concurrently, this resolution will also remove members no longer authorized to be on the 
approved signers list. The members to be removed from the list are Judy Schriebman and Ron 
Ford. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On August 18, 2022, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2022-2272 authorizing signers for Bank 
of Marin accounts.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  

 

Item Number______4E________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

20

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2024-2325  Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2325 
 

A RESOLUTION OF LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING SIGNING AUTHORITY FOR THE BANK OF MARIN OPERATING 
ACCOUNT #03323300 AND ASSOCIATED ACCOUNTS #03510138, #03509510, 

#03508959, #03319258, #03317880, #03511060, #03513652, #03513983, #03716073, 
#03715679 AND REMOVE SIGNERS FROM THE AUTHORIZED SIGNERS LIST 

 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 
San Rafael, California 94903 

Tel: 415-472-1734 
 
WHEREAS, a general operating checking account was established with the Bank of Marin in 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional associated accounts were established to conduct District business; and 
 

WHEREAS, Board Financial Policy F-90-70 requires that checks drawn from the Operating bank account 
will be signed by the General Manager and a Board Member, or delegate the signing of the checks to the 
Administrative Services Manager, and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District does hereby find that the 
authorized signers have changed due to a new board member being appointed as Vice President. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District authorize the following persons or combination of persons listed as signers on the signature card 
are authorized to endorse, on the behalf of the District, any checks or other items payable to the 
organization or its order, to deposit such checks and other items into the account(s), with or without such 
endorsement and to direct withdrawals from the account(s) by check drawing on the account(s) or 
otherwise, including withdrawals payable to anyone who is an authorized signer until they are removed 
from their elected or assigned position: 
 
 CRAIG K. MURRAY    GARY E. ROBARDS  
 PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS  VICE PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
 
 ________________________________  _________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature  
 
 MEGAN CLARK    CRYSTAL J. YEZMAN  
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
 ________________________________  _________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature  
 
  

CURTIS PAXTON    DALE MCDONALD 
 GENERAL MANAGER    ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 ________________________________  _________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature  

21



Resolution No. 2024-2325  Page 2 of 2 

 

        
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
The following signers are to be removed from the authorized signers list: 
  

JUDY SCHRIEBMAN   RONALD FORD 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Administrative Services Manager shall file with the Bank of Marin 
any required signature cards, consumer information forms, and/or submittals along with a copy of this 
executed resolution; all of the authorized signatures appearing for authorized signers on the signature card 
referenced by this resolution are those of the persons authorized to withdraw funds in accordance with this 
resolutions until such authority is revoked by giving written notice to the Bank of Marin signed by 
authorized officers of this organization, and, these resolutions are still in force and are unmodified. 
 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

 I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 
Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 4TH Day of April, 2024, that the 
following persons or combination of persons listed as signers are authorized to endorse, on the 
behalf of this of the district, any checks or other items payable to the organization or its order, to 
deposit such checks and other items into the account, with or without such endorsement and to 
direct withdrawals from the account by check drawing on the account or otherwise, including 
withdrawals payable to anyone who is an authorized signer, by the following vote of the 
members thereof: 
 
 
 
 

AYES, and in favor there of Members:  

NOES, Members:   

ABSENT, Members:  

ABSTAIN, Members:   

      ____________________________________ 
       Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
                  Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
          (seal) 
 
APPROVED: 
           
__________________________ 
Craig K Murray, Board President 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  
   
          

22



 

 
 

 

4/4/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  5.1 

23



 

 
 

 

4/4/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5.2 

24



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\ASR Opportunity to Update Policy F-90-70 Disbursements.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: April 4, 2024 

Re: Opportunity to Modernize the District’s Disbursement Process (Policy F-90-70) 
due to the Sanitary District Reform Act 

Item Type:   Consent   Action        Information   X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Consider revised updates to Board Policy Section F-90-70 Disbursements. All other sections of 
Board Policy F-90 will remain unchanged. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Financial Policy F-90-70 currently requires that all disbursements, whether by check or 
electronic transfer, be included on a Warrant List for Board approval at a duly noticed meeting. 
Signatories for checks are identified in the policy. Legislative changes necessitated a review of our 
disbursement purchasing policy. 
 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) sponsored legislation, AB 759 (Grayson), 
the Sanitary District Reform Act, was adopted and signed into law on June 29, 2023. The Sanitary 
District Act of 1939 was updated to modernize existing statutory accounting practices. The bill 
went into effect January 1, 2024. The act repealed and added to Section 6794 of the Health and 
Safety Code as shown below:  
 

Section 6794(a) The treasurer, or other person or persons that are authorized by the board, shall 
draw checks or warrants to pay demands when demands have been approved by the board and 
signed by the president and secretary. 
 
Section 6794(b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), the board may adopt a procedure that provides 
for checks or warrants to pay claims and demands without approval by the board of directors 
before payment if the district treasurer determines the demands are payable within the district's 
approved budget. The procedure shall contain appropriate internal controls with measures to 
prevent fraud and ensure accountability, and which are necessary for financial reporting in 
conformance with the generally accepted accounting principles. Demands so paid shall be 
presented to the board of directors at 
the next regular meeting for review. Demands exceeding the district’s approved budget shall be 
subject to board approval.  

 
On January 4, 2024, the Board provided feedback on suggested policy changes, asking staff to 
address concerns on oversight, specifically that the policy should include the ability of the  

Item Number________5.3______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

25

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\ASR Opportunity to Update Policy F-90-70 Disbursements.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
Board to review details on invoices and their supporting documents. There was discussion on 
signatories authorized to sign check disbursements in advance of the Board meeting, but no 
consensus or decision was made. The Board inquired about what other agencies are doing.  
 
Prior to AB 759, Ross Valley Sanitary District established their own internal-control accounting 
practices and protocols that best suited their district, giving staff the authority to make payments 
and sign checks in advance of the board meeting. They do require two signatures on checks for 
valid, documented, and approved expenses and board members can be the second signatory if 
staff are unavailable. Their board meets monthly and ratifies all prior month expenditures upon a 
review of a report of the expenditures. 
 
Novato Sanitary District board meets monthly and issues payments/checks twice a month. The 
board receives check register reports, approves disbursements for the first half of the month, and 
ratifies the previous month’s paid disbursements made after the previous month’s board meeting. 
Checks are signed by the General Manager and a board member. There are no plans to change 
their practice. 
 
Our District will benefit from modernizing the accounting practices allowed by Section 6794(b) by 
adopting a procedure to allow the issuance of warrants without obtaining prior Board approval, so 
long as the demands are payable within the District’s approved budget and the check warrant list 
is included in the meeting materials at the next regularly scheduled board meeting. This practice is 
already occurring with vendors set up for Electronic-Fund Transfers (EFTs), for example CalPERS 
and the Bank of Marin who services the District’s Recycled Water Loan. 
 
A Petty Cash Checking Account was established to allow payments to be made between warrant 
approvals by the Board. It is not actively used. The $500 balance kept in this account is not 
sufficient to pay bills of significance. If the Board supports the modernization and granting of 
authority to the General Manager to pay claims and demands from the Operating bank account, 
there is no need to keep the Petty Cash Checking Account.  
 
Attached is the current and proposed version of Board Policy F-90-70 Disbursements for Board 
review. The updates proposed are in compliance with Health and Safety Code Section 6794.  
 
The next steps, conditional upon support by the Board, staff will be to: 
 

1. Bring a Resolution modernizing Policy F-90-70 to the Board. 

2. Incorporate into the Resolution authorization to close the Bank of Marin Petty Cash 
Checking account and transfer funds to the Bank of Marin Operating Account. 

 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On September 1, 2022, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-2277 revising Board Policy F-90.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

26



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\ASR Summer 2024 Newsletter Topics.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: April 4, 2024 

Re: Topics for the Summer 2024 Newsletter 
 

Item Type:   Consent         Action    Information   X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff requests that the Board discuss proposed topics for the Summer 2024 Newsletter and select 
topics from the recommended list below. 

BACKGROUND: 
The District publishes newsletters approximately every six (6) months to inform its ratepayers 
about District projects, programs, and other items of interest. Each newsletter typically has one 
main topic and three to four smaller articles. Staff is planning to mail the Summer 2024 Newsletter 
the first week of June 2024. 
 
It will be a traditional 4-page color newsletter. The District’s new website allows residents and 
others to sign up for email alerts. As our email list grows, the District will incorporate electronic 
delivery of e-Newsletters into our public outreach efforts. 
 
Included with this report is a list of past newsletter topics and their publication date. Below is a list 
of items for possible inclusion in the newsletter. 
 

• Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District: 70 years of Service to Marin Residents 

• Award of architectural design contract for Lab / Board / Education Center building 

• Careers in the Wastewater Industry 

• Welcome to Our Newest Board Member 

• Website Redesigned and Email Alerts 

• Electronic Recycling Achieve Zero Waste in Marin 

• No Drugs Down the Drain 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION: 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Publication of the newsletter is included in the 2023-24 Budget. 

Item Number_______5.4_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

27

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY DATE

3/26/2024

1:24 PM

Topic Article Title Publication DatePeriod

Plant Upgrade

District Celebrates Completion of the Secondary 

Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion 

Project 2024 Winter

Rates

Low Income Assistance Program Can Help Customers In 

Need 2024 Winter

Refuse

Fighting Climate Change Through Organic Waste 

Diversion 2024 Winter

Awards District Named Recycled Water Agency of the Year 2024 Winter

District Public Invited to Review Hazard Mitigation Projects 2024 Winter

Plant Upgrade

Upgraded Treatment Plant Successfully Weathered 

Storms 2023 Summer

Admin Bldg

Replacement of Operations and Administration Building 

in the Works 2023 Summer

Reclamation SF Bay Trail Traverses Las Gallinas Reclamation Ponds 2023 Summer

District Welcome Gary Robards, Newest Board Member 2023 Summer

Rates

Sewer Rate Study Will Guide Board Decision on Sewer 

Charges 2023 Summer

Rates

Public Hearing Scheduled on Proposed Sewer Service 

Charge Increase 2023 Summer

District District Evaluates Electric Vehicles to Include in Fleet 2023 Summer

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant Upgrade Nearly Complete 2022 Fall 

District Welcome Curtis Paxton, New General Manager 2022 Fall

District

Newest District Board Member Nearing One Year of 

Service 2022 Fall

Reclamation

Wildlife Spotlight Facts about the North American River 

Otter 2022 Fall

Laterals

Programs Help Offset Your Costs  Later Repair Assistance 

and Low-income Rate Assistance 2022 Fall

Pollution prevention

Join the District in Helping Protect the Environment 

Thermometer Exchange and Battery Recycle Program 2022 Fall

District Kid's Corner - Match the Truck with it's name 2022 Fall

Recycled Water Recycled Water - Even More Important During Drought 2022 Spring

District District Hires Interim General Manager 2022 Spring

Pollution prevention

Zero Waster Marin We can All do our Part To Achieve 

Zero Waste 2022 Spring

Rates Sewer Rate Increase Anticipated 2022 Spring

Laterals

Reminder: Sewer Laterals are Property Owner's 

Responsibility 2022 Spring

District 

District Honored for Helping Monitor COVID in 

Wastewater 2022 Spring

Reclamation Sharing the Trails at District's Reclamation Area 2022 Spring

Construction

Major Construction Milestone - Completion of Phase 1: 

Recycled Water Expansion 2021 Fall

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Master Topics List 2011-2024 Page 1 of 428



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY DATE

3/26/2024

1:24 PM

Topic Article Title Publication DatePeriod

Reclamation

Trails, Ponds, Wildlife and Views: Reclamation is for all to 

Enjoy 2021 Fall

District Careers in Wastewater Management 2021 Fall

District Department Spotlight: Administration and Engineering 2021 Fall

District How Activated Sludge is Used in Wastewater Treatment 2021 Fall

Refuse Mobile App for Waste/Recycling Collection 2021 Fall

Recycled Water Do Your Part to Save Water 2021 Fall

COVID-19 Tracking COVID in our Sewers 2021 Winter

Biosolids Biosolids-Capturing a Resource 2021 Winter

Flushing Wipes Clog Pipes 2021 Winter

Construction Construction Affects Reclamation Area Access 2021 Winter

Construction

Progress Continues on Secondary Treatment Plant 

Upgrade/Recycled Water Expansion Project 2021 Winter

District Department Spotlight: Operations 2021 Winter

Laterals Low Cost Funds Available for Lateral Repair/Replacement 2021 Winter

District Introducing Dale McDonald New ASM 2021 Winter

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade 2020 Spring

Pollution prevention Monitoring Helps Keep Mercury Out of the Environment 2020 Spring

District Mutually Beneficial Partnerships Leverage our Efforts 2020 Spring

Pollution prevention

Help Protect Local Waterways – Tips for your Pool, Spa, 

or Fountain 2020 Spring

District Department Spotlight: Collections Systems 2020 Spring

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Fall

District District Administrative/Engineering Office Move. 2019 Fall

Ordinance Sewer Lateral Ordinance. 2019 Fall

District PG&E “Public Safety Power Shutoff” Program. 2019 Fall

District Understanding the Recycled water storage ponds. 2019 Fall

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Spring

Construction Possible Road Closure. 2019 Spring

Rates New Rates and Public Hearing. 2019 Spring

Drain/Flushing Are they really Flushable. 2019 Spring

District

New Team at LGVSD: New Employees and Board 

members. 2019 Spring

District LGVSD starting strong in 2018. 2018 Winter

District Chris DeGabriele hired as interim general manager. 2018 Winter

Flushing Microbeads study under way. 2018 Winter

Biogas

Biogas energy recovery system: another step towards 

energy independence. 2018 Winter

Plant Upgrade Current Status of treatment plant upgrade project. 2018 Winter

Admin Bldg Dilapidated building needs urgent revamping. 2017 Summer

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant upgrade addresses critical issues. 2017 Summer

Reclamation Miller Creek dredging resumes. 2017 Summer

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Master Topics List 2011-2024 Page 2 of 429



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY DATE

3/26/2024

1:24 PM

Topic Article Title Publication DatePeriod

Recycled Water

Potable reuse is the addition of advanced purified water, 

either indirectly or directly, into a drinking water system. 2017 Summer

Recycled Water

All water is recycled. Don’t judge water by its history but 

by its quality. 2017 Summer

Refuse

Free Service: bulky item removal. Plus, curbside clean-up 

coming in the fall. 2017 Summer

Laterals Always Get Three Quotes Before Performing Work 2016 Fall

Pest Control Keep Mosquitos in Check Around Your Home 2016 Fall

Reclamation

River Otters Provide Student Biologist with Field 

Experience 2016 Fall

Reclamation Miller Creek Dredging Begun 2016 Fall

Flushing

Did I cause a sewer overflow? Be aware of what you put 

down the drain. 2016 Fall

Pollution prevention We Can All Do Our Part to Achieve Zero Waste 2016 Spring

Recycled water

Advanced Purified Recycled Water – the New Drought 

Proof Water Supply 2016 Spring

Laterals Protect your sewer lateral and prepare for wet winter 2015 Fall

Pest Control Tips for Your Pool, Spa, or Fountain 2015 Fall

Pollution prevention Thermometer, bulbs and battery exchange 2015 Fall

Grants Grants Received for Biogas Conversion to Energy 2015 Fall

Reclamation Parking at reclamation area 2015 Fall

Refuse Compost giveaway 2015 Fall

Flushing “Wipe Out” Flushing of Personal Wipes! 2015 Spring

Pest Control You Can Help Protect the Bay 2015 Spring

Rates

District Continues to Address Aging Infrastructure, 

Changes in Wastewater Content, and New Regulations 2015 Spring

Rates Next Phase of Critical Upgrades Requires Fee Increases 2015 Spring

Rates Tours, Workshops, and Public Hearing Scheduled 2015 Spring

Flushing

Wastewater Treatment Complicated by New 

Contaminants 2014 Fall

Flushing Don’t Use the Drain as a Dump 2014 Fall

Laterals Roots and Sewer Laterals Don’t Mix Well 2014 Fall

Plant Upgrade

District Forced to Upgrade Aging Treatment Plant to 

Meet Regulations 2014 Fall

Reclamation Hiking, Biking, Views on Bayside Trails 2014 Fall

Admin Bldg Facilities Need Upgrading 2014 Spring

Awards District Wins Finance Award 2014 Spring

District

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District: 60 Years of Service to 

Marin Residents 2014 Spring

Laterals

What is a Property Easement and Do You Have One on 

Your Property? 2014 Spring

Flushing

FDA Questions Effectiveness, Safety of Antibacterial 

Soaps 2014 Spring

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Master Topics List 2011-2024 Page 3 of 430



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY DATE

3/26/2024

1:24 PM

Topic Article Title Publication DatePeriod

Pest Control Keep Your Pool or Spa Clean — and Protect Waterways 2014 Spring

Awards

LGVSD Awarded Certificate of Excellence for 

Transparency 2014 Winter

Projects District Looks Ahead to Meet Regulatory Requirements 2014 Winter

Rates

Board considers options for sewer rate billing methods: 

variable vs. fixed 2014 Winter

Rates Public Meeting on Proposed Rate Changes 2014 Winter

District

LGVSD Workers Go Above and Beyond to Help a District 

Customer in Need 2014 Winter

Awards

Awards Recognize Outstanding District Programs and 

Performance 2013 Summer

District District Redesigns Website for Easier Access 2013 Summer

Flushing Protect Water Quality: Watch What You Flush 2013 Summer

Flushing

Antibacterial Soaps Can Harm the Environment and 

Wildlife 2013 Summer

Plant Upgrade

Upgrades Maintain System Efficiency and Environmental 

Health 2013 Summer

Projects

LGVSD Will Perform Smoke Testing During Summer 

Months 2013 Summer

Laterals It’s Time to Have Your Pipes Inspected! 2013 Winter

Laterals Prepare for the Rainy Season 2013 Winter

Plant Upgrade LGVSD Launches New Recycled Water Treatment Facility 2013 Winter

Reclamation LGVSD Trails Offer Hiking, Biking, Views and More 2013 Winter

Recycled Water Recycled Water: A Track Record for Safety 2013 Winter

Pest Control Avoid Using The Toxic Insecticide Permethrin 2012 April

Inflow and Infiltration We Must Reduce Inflow and Infiltration 2012 May

Projects Lighting Change Decreases Glare, Saves Money 2012 May

Reclamation Growing Problem: Goose Population Boom 2012 May

Recycled Water Recycled Water Project Under way 2012 May

Awards Awarded Sewer Collection System of the Year… Again! 2011 March

Grants District Awarded $871,000 Grant for Recycled Water 2011 March

Laterals

What’s the Best Way to Fix Laterals and How to Make it 

Affordable? 2011 March

Laterals

Damaged Laterals Are Privately Owned but Harm the 

Community 2011 March

Laterals We Are Developing Lateral Inspection and Repair Options 2011 March

Refuse Residential food waste composting test a success 2011 March

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Master Topics List 2011-2024 Page 4 of 431



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

3/26/2024

1:31 PM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period

Admin Bldg

Replacement of Operations and Administration Building in 

the Works 2023 Summer

Admin Bldg Dilapidated building needs urgent revamping. 2017 Summer

Admin Bldg Facilities Need Upgrading 2014 Spring

Awards District Named Recycled Water Agency of the Year 2024 Winter

Awards District Wins Finance Award 2014 Spring

Awards LGVSD Awarded Certificate of Excellence for Transparency 2014 Winter

Awards

Awards Recognize Outstanding District Programs and 

Performance 2013 Summer

Awards Awarded Sewer Collection System of the Year… Again! 2011 March

Biogas

Biogas energy recovery system: another step towards 

energy independence. 2018 Winter

Biosolids Biosolids-Capturing a Resource 2021 Winter

Construction

Major Construction Milestone - Completion of Phase 1: 

Recycled Water Expansion 2021 Fall

Construction Construction Affects Reclamation Area Access 2021 Winter

Construction

Progress Continues on Secondary Treatment Plant 

Upgrade/Recycled Water Expansion Project 2021 Winter

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Fall

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade. 2019 Spring

Construction Possible Road Closure. 2019 Spring

Construction Update on Treatment Plant Upgrade 2020 Spring

COVID-19 Tracking COVID in our Sewers 2021 Winter

District Public Invited to Review Hazard Mitigation Projects 2024 Winter

District District Evaluates Electric Vehicles to Include in Fleet 2023 Summer

District Welcome Gary Robards, Newest Board Member 2023 Summer

District Welcome Curtis Paxton, New General Manager 2022 Fall

District Newest District Board Member Nearing One Year of Service 2022 Fall

District Kid's Corner - Match the Truck with it's name 2022 Fall

District District Hires Interim General Manager 2022 Spring

District District Honored for Helping Monitor COVID in Wastewater 2022 Spring

District Careers in Wastewater Management 2021 Fall

District Department Spotlight: Administration and Engineering 2021 Fall

District How Activated Sludge is Used in Wastewater Treatment 2021 Fall

District Introducing Dale McDonald New ASM 2021 Winter

District Department Spotlight: Operations 2021 Winter

District District Administrative/Engineering Office Move. 2019 Fall

District PG&E “Public Safety Power Shutoff” Program. 2019 Fall

District Understanding the Recycled water storage ponds. 2019 Fall

District New Team at LGVSD: New Employees and Board members. 2019 Spring

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Sorted by Topics Page 1 of 432



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

3/26/2024

1:31 PM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period
District LGVSD starting strong in 2018. 2018 Winter

District Chris DeGabriele hired as interim general manager. 2018 Winter

District

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District: 60 Years of Service to 

Marin Residents 2014 Spring

District

LGVSD Workers Go Above and Beyond to Help a District 

Customer in Need 2014 Winter

District District Redesigns Website for Easier Access 2013 Summer

District Mutually Beneficial Partnerships Leverage our Efforts 2020 Spring

District Department Spotlight: Collections Systems 2020 Spring

Drain/Flushing Are they really Flushable. 2019 Spring

Flushing Wipes Clog Pipes 2021 Winter

Flushing Microbeads study under way. 2018 Winter

Flushing

Did I cause a sewer overflow? Be aware of what you put 

down the drain. 2016 Fall

Flushing “Wipe Out” Flushing of Personal Wipes! 2015 Spring

Flushing Wastewater Treatment Complicated by New Contaminants 2014 Fall

Flushing Don’t Use the Drain as a Dump 2014 Fall

Flushing FDA Questions Effectiveness, Safety of Antibacterial Soaps 2014 Spring

Flushing Protect Water Quality: Watch What You Flush 2013 Summer

Flushing Antibacterial Soaps Can Harm the Environment and Wildlife 2013 Summer

Grants Grants Received for Biogas Conversion to Energy 2015 Fall

Grants District Awarded $871,000 Grant for Recycled Water 2011 March

Inflow and Infiltration We Must Reduce Inflow and Infiltration 2012 May

Laterals

Programs Help Offset Your Costs  Later Repair Assistance 

and Low-income Rate Assistance 2022 Fall

Laterals

Reminder: Sewer Laterals are Property Owner's 

Responsibility 2022 Spring

Laterals Low Cost Funds Available for Lateral Repair/Replacement 2021 Winter

Laterals Always Get Three Quotes Before Performing Work 2016 Fall

Laterals Protect your sewer lateral and prepare for wet winter 2015 Fall

Laterals Roots and Sewer Laterals Don’t Mix Well 2014 Fall

Laterals

What is a Property Easement and Do You Have One on Your 

Property? 2014 Spring

Laterals It’s Time to Have Your Pipes Inspected! 2013 Winter

Laterals Prepare for the Rainy Season 2013 Winter

Laterals

What’s the Best Way to Fix Laterals and How to Make it 

Affordable? 2011 March

Laterals

Damaged Laterals Are Privately Owned but Harm the 

Community 2011 March

Laterals We Are Developing Lateral Inspection and Repair Options 2011 March

Ordinance Sewer Lateral Ordinance. 2019 Fall

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Sorted by Topics Page 2 of 433



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

3/26/2024

1:31 PM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period
Pest Control Keep Mosquitos in Check Around Your Home 2016 Fall

Pest Control Tips for Your Pool, Spa, or Fountain 2015 Fall

Pest Control You Can Help Protect the Bay 2015 Spring

Pest Control Keep Your Pool or Spa Clean — and Protect Waterways 2014 Spring

Pest Control Avoid Using The Toxic Insecticide Permethrin 2012 April

Plant Upgrade

District Celebrates Completion of the Secondary Treatment 

Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion Project 2024 Winter

Plant Upgrade Upgraded Treatment Plant Successfully Weathered Storms 2023 Summer

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant Upgrade Nearly Complete 2022 Fall 

Plant Upgrade Current Status of treatment plant upgrade project. 2018 Winter

Plant Upgrade Treatment Plant upgrade addresses critical issues. 2017 Summer

Plant Upgrade

District Forced to Upgrade Aging Treatment Plant to Meet 

Regulations 2014 Fall

Plant Upgrade

Upgrades Maintain System Efficiency and Environmental 

Health 2013 Summer

Plant Upgrade LGVSD Launches New Recycled Water Treatment Facility 2013 Winter

Pollution prevention

Join the District in Helping Protect the Environment 

Thermometer Exchange and Battery Recycle Program 2022 Fall

Pollution prevention

Zero Waster Marin We can All do our Part To Achieve Zero 

Waste 2022 Spring

Pollution prevention We Can All Do Our Part to Achieve Zero Waste 2016 Spring

Pollution prevention Thermometer, bulbs and battery exchange 2015 Fall

Pollution prevention Monitoring Helps Keep Mercury Out of the Environment 2020 Spring

Pollution prevention

Help Protect Local Waterways – Tips for your Pool, Spa, or 

Fountain 2020 Spring

Projects District Looks Ahead to Meet Regulatory Requirements 2014 Winter

Projects LGVSD Will Perform Smoke Testing During Summer Months 2013 Summer

Projects Lighting Change Decreases Glare, Saves Money 2012 May

Rates

Low Income Assistance Program Can Help Customers In 

Need 2024 Winter

Rates

Sewer Rate Study Will Guide Board Decision on Sewer 

Charges 2023 Summer

Rates

Public Hearing Scheduled on Proposed Sewer Service 

Charge Increase 2023 Summer

Rates Sewer Rate Increase Anticipated 2022 Spring

Rates New Rates and Public Hearing. 2019 Spring

Rates

District Continues to Address Aging Infrastructure, Changes 

in Wastewater Content, and New Regulations 2015 Spring

Rates Next Phase of Critical Upgrades Requires Fee Increases 2015 Spring

Rates Tours, Workshops, and Public Hearing Scheduled 2015 Spring

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Sorted by Topics Page 3 of 434



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
NEWSLETTER TOPICS 

SORTED BY Topic

3/26/2024

1:31 PM

Topic Article Title

Publication 

Date Period

Rates

Board considers options for sewer rate billing methods: 

variable vs. fixed 2014 Winter

Rates Public Meeting on Proposed Rate Changes 2014 Winter

Reclamation SF Bay Trail Traverses Las Gallinas Reclamation Ponds 2023 Summer

Reclamation

Wildlife Spotlight Facts about the North American River 

Otter 2022 Fall

Reclamation Sharing the Trails at District's Reclamation Area 2022 Spring

Reclamation

Trails, Ponds, Wildlife and Views: Reclamation is for all to 

Enjoy 2021 Fall

Reclamation Miller Creek dredging resumes. 2017 Summer

Reclamation River Otters Provide Student Biologist with Field Experience 2016 Fall

Reclamation Miller Creek Dredging Begun 2016 Fall

Reclamation Parking at reclamation area 2015 Fall

Reclamation Hiking, Biking, Views on Bayside Trails 2014 Fall

Reclamation LGVSD Trails Offer Hiking, Biking, Views and More 2013 Winter

Reclamation Growing Problem: Goose Population Boom 2012 May

Recycled Water Recycled Water - Even More Important During Drought 2022 Spring

Recycled Water Do Your Part to Save Water 2021 Fall

Recycled Water

Potable reuse is the addition of advanced purified water, 

either indirectly or directly, into a drinking water system. 2017 Summer

Recycled Water

All water is recycled. Don’t judge water by its history but by 

its quality. 2017 Summer

Recycled water

Advanced Purified Recycled Water – the New Drought Proof 

Water Supply 2016 Spring

Recycled Water Recycled Water: A Track Record for Safety 2013 Winter

Recycled Water Recycled Water Project Under way 2012 May

Refuse Fighting Climate Change Through Organic Waste Diversion 2024 Winter

Refuse Mobile App for Waste/Recycling Collection 2021 Fall

Refuse

Free Service: bulky item removal. Plus, curbside clean-up 

coming in the fall. 2017 Summer

Refuse Compost giveaway 2015 Fall

Refuse Residential food waste composting test a success 2011 March

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Sorted by Topics Page 4 of 435



 

 
 

 

4/4/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad 
Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 7A 
                                                                                 DATE: April 4, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

57



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\04042024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

4/4/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 7B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83


	Agenda 04042024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Appoint District Negotiator for Closed Session
	3 Closed Session
	4A Minutes 03212024
	4B Warrant List 04042024
	4C Murray Carbon Capture Webinar request
	4D Pasture Irrigation O&M 2024-25
	4E Resolution 2024-2325 Bank of Marin signing authority
	5.1 Solar Project Update
	5.2 General Manager Report
	5.3 Opportunity to Update Policy F-90-70 Disbursements
	5.4  Summer 2024 Newsletter Topics
	6 Board Member Reports
	6.2 Murray Other Reports
	7A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	7B Board Agenda Item Requests
	8 Various Industry Articles



